
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 

(No response) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 11 

07/2016 

08/2017 

www.excellencecommunityschools.org 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 240 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 234 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT Yes 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

l2. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS 

NAME OF CMO/EMO Excellence Community Schools 

PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 2090 7th Avenue, Suite 605 

CITY New York 

STATE NY 

ZIP CODE 10027 

EMAIL ADDRESS 

CONTACT PERSON NAME Charlene Reid 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

2 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

3956 Carpenter
Site 1 Avenue 

Bronx NY 10466 

Phone Number 

718 882 0231 

District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

NYC CSD 11 K 3 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone 

Charlton Clarke 

Jahnna Rymer 

Monica Rios 

Jacques Michel 

Melanee Farrah 

Jacques Michel 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

K 3 

Email Address 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 

3 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Monica Rios 

Position Regional Director of School Operations 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

4 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/01 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000088149&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&section_1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMel 
p=1&EMchronic=1&staffqual=1&expend=1&nyseslat=1&fedd 

ata=1 

1 / 1 





    

  

 

 

  

 
 

 

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Mardi Schecter Secretary, Executive/Discipline 

Lisa Keill Treasurer,
Executive/Finance/Discipline 

Stacey Lauren Trustee, Executive/Discipline 

Tanya Pierre Trustee, Executive/Discipline 

 harlton  larke has served as Principal for Bronx  harter School for 
Excellence 3, grades K-2 since July 2017. Dawn Dean has served as the 
3rd grade Elementary School Leader since July 2018. 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 2 of 13 



    

              
            
         

         
           

            
 

         

 

   

  

           

   

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Opening in 2017, the mission of the Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 is to
prepare young people to compete for admission to and succeed in top public,
private and parochial high schools by cultivating their intellectual, artistic, 
social, emotional and ethical development. The school accomplishes this by
constantly striving to create a supportive and caring environment that at all
times has high expectations of its students and ofers a challenging and rigorous
academic curriculum. 

The demographics of the population served by BCSE 3 are as follows: 

Black (non-Hispanic) 72.5% 

Hispanic 24.0% 

American Indian, Alaskan, Asian 

or Pacifc Islander 3.5% 

In addition, 70% of our students are eligible for free or reduced lunch. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year 

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Tota 
l 

2017-18 90 60 150 

2018-19 88 87 58 233 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 3 of 13 







    

          
            

      
          

           
         

       
           

            
              
            

            
            

            
       

          
           

     
       

        
         

        
           

 

 

 

 

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

authentic problem solving activities. The Math in Focus program with problem
solving as the center of math learning and concepts taught with a concrete–
pictorial–abstract learning progression through real-world, hands-on experience
is a program that focuses on making connections and unpacking mathematical
skills and concepts. Our enriched curriculum supports the goals of the Common
Core State Standards for Mathematics, is research-based and focuses on 
classroom learning, discussion, and practice while balancing conceptual 
understanding, visual learning, and problem solving. On a daily basis students
are asked to demonstrate their mastery of basic concepts so that these skills
can move to a level of automaticity, allowing more time to be spent on robust
and challenging mathematical questions. Our focus is on making our students
fuent in mathematics as evidenced by their ability to tackle concepts from a
variety of angles. The program was supported with resources from Engage NY to
align to the Common Core standards. All grades are expected to master both
content and mathematical processes appropriate for their age/grade. 

Our assessments include unit-based quizzes and tests that check progress for
profciency in skills and concepts connected to the Common Core standards. We 
also use simple and multi-step constructed responses and project based learning
to assess mastery of skills and concepts. 

This year our professional development focused on program implementation,
creating meaningful math conversations within the classroom, looking closely at
the Common Core standards by attending professional development sessions
and examining sample tasks ofered by New York State and other educational
agencies and organizations. 

METHOD 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 6 of 13 





    

        
          

        
      

       
         

           
            

        
        

        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Professional development was ofered consistently for the 2018-2019 school 
year. It provided the classroom teachers with support in program 
implementation, opportunities to explore resources, and models of STEM 
questioning, discussion techniques, and explorations. Talented, certifed 
teachers participated in professional workshops to enhance inquiry-based 
explorations and build on developing more hands experiences using more 
student led experiments with teacher support. In turn, students built skills
needed to investigate and then explain the world that surrounds them. Teacher 
professional development directly and indirectly afects students. Students 
learn to practice solving problems creatively, thinking critically, working
cooperatively in teams, using technology efectively, and developing positive
science attitudes. 

METHOD 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

ACTION PLAN 
This section is not applicable to Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 
as a result of the school being in operation for only two years, which 
does not include New York State testing grades. 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 8 of 13 





    

 
         

  

       
     

  

 
 

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3’s ESSA status for 2018-2019 school year
is “Good Standing.” 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 has maintained “Good Standing” ESSA
status since 2017-2018, its inaugural academic year. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2017-18 Good Standing 
2018-19 Good Standing 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 10 of 13 







    

          
           

      

 
              

            
   

 
 

        

 

       
                                          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

METHOD 
Attendance is taken every morning and entered into NYCDOE’s ATS system.
Daily, monthly and annual attendance reports are calculated by child, class and
school and can be requested in a variety of reports. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
In 2018-19, the BCSE 3 ended the year with an average of 95.8% attendance.
This meets the goal of at least 95% attendance. Individually, each grade also
surpassed the 95% attendance goal. 

2018-19 Attendance 

Grade 
Average Daily
Attendance 

Rate 
K 95.6% 
1 95.6% 
2 96.5% 

Overal 
l 

95.8% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
In both 2017-2018, and 2018-2019, BCSE 3 surpassed 95% attendance
benchmark. 

Year 
Average Daily
Attendance 

Rate 
2017-

18 96.1% 

2018-
19 95.8% 

Bronx Charter School for Excellence 3 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress
Report Page 13 of 13 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3Section Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 3496009 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 234 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 14391 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

235498 

165690 

401188 

1713 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Bronx Charter School for Excellence 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bronx Charter School for Excellence which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Bronx Charter School for Excellence as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Bronx Charter School for Excellence’s June 30, 2018 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2018. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2019 on our 
consideration of Bronx Charter School for Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in  
considering Bronx Charter School for Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

ASSETS June 30, 
2019 2018 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,314,675 $ 6,312,887 

  Grants and contracts receivable 943,191 1,425,882
  Prepaid expenses 250,099 207,048 
Due from related parties 298,803 282,337 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 13,806,768 8,228,154 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 32,041,208 32,845,287 

OTHER ASSETS
  Cash in escrow 225,000 150,000
  Security deposits 9,185 9,185 

Investments - restricted 3,029,107 2,981,991 
3,263,292 3,141,176 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 49,111,268 $ 44,214,617 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Current portion of bonds payable $ 505,000 $ 485,000 
  Accounts payable 317,541 481,876
  Accrued expenses 575,482 406,422
  Accrued payroll and benefits 1,094,985 782,444
  Accrued construction retainage - 86,147
  Deferred revenue 258,391 39,753
  Deferred lease incentive - 2,427
  Management fees due to charter management organization 731,852 567,568 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,483,251 2,851,637 

OTHER LIABILITIES
 Bonds payable, net of unamortized bond issuance costs 
of $994,074 and $1,080,955, respectively 22,515,958 23,027,596

  Reserve for payment of debt service 1,540,000 1,540,000 
Deferred lease liability 697,217 552,578 

24,753,175 25,120,174 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,236,426 27,971,811 

NET ASSETS, without donor restrictions 20,874,842 16,242,806 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 49,111,268 $ 44,214,617 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

Revenue, gains and other support:
  Public school district
    Resident student enrollment $ 21,809,994 $ 16,796,018 
    Students with disabilities 1,114,456 838,744
 Grants and contracts:
    State and local 257,100 327,787
    Federal - Title and IDEA 1,129,719 720,124
    Federal - other 348,050 573,129
  Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 467,487 473,517 
NYC DOE Rental Assistance 1,345,517 1,150,953 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS 
AND OTHER SUPPORT 26,472,323 20,880,272 

Expenses:
  Program:

 Regular education 17,511,569 13,806,892
    Special education 2,728,494 2,079,189 

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 20,240,063 15,886,081
 Management and general 1,615,421 994,369
  Fundraising and special events 25,120 436 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 21,880,604 16,880,886 

SURPLUS FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 4,591,719 3,999,386 

Support and other revenue:
  Contributions

 Corporations - 198
    Contributed services - 11,307
  Fundraising - 30,250
  Investment income 37,962 21,066
  Miscellaneous income 2,355 3,196 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 40,317 66,017 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 4,632,036 4,065,403 

Net assets at beginning of year 16,242,806 12,177,403 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 20,874,842 $ 16,242,806 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Personnel Services Costs:
     Administrative staff personnel
     Instructional personnel
     Non-instructional personnel

Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

14 
63 

8 
85 

Regular 
Education 

$
 812,977         4,440,683
1,762,041 

        7,015,701

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

$ 129,767 
            612,861 

402,856 

         1,145,484 

$ 

Sub-total 

942,744 5,053,544 
2,164,897 

8,161,185 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 

Supporting Services 
Management 

and Fundraising and 
general special events 

$ 343,205 $ 11,724 
-

-
169,424

 -

            512,629 11,724 

$ 

Sub-total 

354,929 

-

169,424 

524,353 

$ 

Total 

1,297,673 
   5,053,544 

2,334,321 

         8,685,538 

 2018  

Total 

$ 621,709 
       3,747,075 

1,083,247 

 5,452,031 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Professional development
Legal fees
Audit/accounting fees
Professional services
Student and staff recruitment
Curriculum and classroom supplies
Office expenses
Food service
Student services
Insurance
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities
Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Management fees
Other 

$

 1,746,213

 38,820

 -

-

1,438,303

 30,918
 609,988
 211,663
 393,219
 142,542

 -

1,116,144

 262,610
 106,831
 273,712
 893,957
 888,457 2,338,8563,635 

17,511,569
 $ 

   296,028 
                6,508 

-
-            210,448 

   4,626 
    53,411 

              34,669 
              46,828 
              18,142 

-            175,284 
              42,753 

              6,795 
              44,859
            111,744 
            148,905 
            381,404 

606 

2,728,494 $ 

2,042,241 

45,328 

-
-

1,648,751 

35,544 
663,399 
246,332 
440,047 

160,684 

-

1,291,428 
    305,363 

113,626 
318,571 1,005,701 
1,037,362 
2,720,260 

4,241 

20,240,063 $ 

            138,686 
                2,070
              16,387 
              31,530 
            125,928 
                1,574

-
              15,021 

-
-

            156,216 
            110,470 
              19,778 
                3,404
              19,559 
            111,744 
            134,338 
            173,251 

42,836

1,615,421 $ 

2,872 

45 
-

-1,475 

36 

-343 

-
-

-
  2,530 

454 
182      447 

-1,037 
3,970 

5 

25,120 $ 

141,558 

2,115 
16,387 
31,530 
127,403 

1,610 

-
15,364 

-
-

156,216 
113,000 20,232 

3,586 
20,006 
111,744 
135,375 
177,221 

42,841 

1,640,541 $ 

         2,183,799 
              47,443 
              16,387 
              31,530 
         1,776,154 
              37,154 
            663,399 
            261,696 
            440,047 
            160,684 
            156,216 
         1,404,428 
            325,595 
            117,212
            338,577 
         1,117,445 
         1,172,737 
         2,897,481 

47,082 

21,880,604 

       1,443,344 
14,100 

            21,433 
       32,730 

       1,500,629 
     22,519 

          527,033 
          249,065 
          579,783 
            92,129 
          120,936 
       1,391,727 
          282,769 
          119,943 
          445,425 
       1,015,524 
       1,203,446 
       2,244,243 

122,077 

$ 16,880,886 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Change in net assets $ 4,632,036 $ 4,065,403 

  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
provided from operating activities:

      Depreciation and amortization 1,117,445 1,015,524
      Bond premium amortization (93,519) (93,269)
      Amortization of bond issuance costs included in interest expense 86,881 100,564
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and contracts receivable 482,691 (888,634)
        Prepaid expense (43,051) (132,614)
        Due to/from related parties (16,466) 169,733
        Accounts payable (184,335) 753

 Accrued expenses 169,060 12,201
 Accrued payroll and benefits 312,541 295,080

        Deferred revenue 218,638 35,692
        Deferred lease incentive (2,427) (4,160)
        Management fees due to charter management organization 164,284 (1,266,916)
        Deferred lease liability 144,639 406,709 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,988,417 3,716,066 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment (379,513) (532,445)
  Increase in cash in escrow (75,000) (50,000)
  Purchases of investments (47,116) (409,471) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (501,629) (991,916) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Repayments of bonds payable (485,000) (470,000) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (485,000) (470,000) 

NET INCREASE  IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,001,788 2,254,150 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,312,887 4,058,737 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 12,314,675 $ 6,312,887 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
  Cash paid during the year for interest $ 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

1,090,706 $ 1,106,857 

NON-CASH OPERATING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment included in accounts payable 
  Reduction of property and equipment via release of accrued 
    construction retainage 

$ 

$ 

20,000 $ 205,931 

86,147 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Bronx Charter School for Excellence (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation operating as a charter 
school in the borough of the Bronx, New York. On April 29, 2003, the Board of Regents of the University of 
the State of New York granted Bronx Charter School for Excellence (“Bronx Excellence 1”) a provisional 
charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration. In March 2009, January 2014 and March 
2019, Bronx Excellence 1 was awarded a full-term, five-year charter renewal through July 31, 2024. Bronx 
Excellence 1 was established to prepare young people from New York City to compete for admission to, and 
succeed in, top public, private and parochial schools by cultivating their intellectual, artistic, social, emotional 
and ethical development. Bronx Excellence 1 offers a challenging and rigorous academic curriculum which, at 
the earliest of grades, has an eye towards college preparation for grades first through eighth.  

On November 2, 2015, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York amended the charter 
agreement permitting an additional school to be opened by the Charter School. During the 2016 fiscal year, the 
Charter School added Bronx Charter School for Excellence 2 (“Bronx Excellence 2”) under its expanded 
charter. Bronx Excellence 2 has the authority to operate through July 31, 2021. Bronx Excellence 2 was 
established to provide its students with a solid foundation for academic success, through achievement that 
exceeds citywide averages and meets or exceeds New York State Standards and national norms in all 
curriculum areas tested, especially in mathematics and language arts. 

On March 24, 2017, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York amended the charter 
agreement permitting an additional 3 schools to be opened by the Charter School, Bronx Charter School for 
Excellence 3, 4, and 5. Bronx Excellence 5 has not yet opened. These three charter schools have authority to 
operate through July 31, 2022. These charter schools were established to provide its students with a solid 
foundation for academic success, through achievement that exceeds citywide averages and meets or exceeds 
New York State Standards and national norms in all curriculum areas tested, especially in mathematics and 
language arts. 

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of Bronx Excellence 1, Bronx Excellence 2, 
Bronx Excellence 3 and Bronx Excellence 4 (collectively referred to as the “Charter School”). All 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements. 

Classification of net assets 
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Charter School, 
the accounts of the Charter School are maintained in accordance with the principles of accounting for not-for-
profit organizations. This is the procedure by which resources are classified for reporting purposes into net asset 
groups, established according to their nature and purpose. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been 
recorded and reported by net asset group. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

The assets, liabilities, activities, and net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 
The Board of Trustees has discretionary control to use these in carrying on operations in accordance with the 
guidelines established by the Charter School. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the 
donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the 
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been 
fulfilled, or both. The Charter School had no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable or requirements of the grant are met. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the pledge is received and documented. 

Contributions 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. All 
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the 
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net 
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net 
assets released from restrictions. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured 
by the FDIC up to $250,000 at each institution. The Charter School considers all highly liquid instruments 
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of money 
market accounts. In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given time may exceed 
insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not 
believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash and cash equivalents. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  
The amount in escrow was $225,000 and $150,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  

Grants and contracts receivable 
Grants and contracts receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding 
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status 
of individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management 
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The Charter School capitalizes all purchases of fixed assets in 
excess of $5,000. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method on a basis 
considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range from 4 to 39 years. 
Prior to the bond issuance (Note H), leasehold improvements at Bronx Excellence 1 were amortized over the 
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the related lease. These improvements 
are continuing to be amortized over the originally calculated life. All other leasehold improvements are being 
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the related lease. 

Bond issuance costs 
Bond issuance costs, which consist of deferred financing charges, are stated at cost and are amortized over the 
term of the bonds which vary from 5 to 30 years through various dates up to April 2043. The Charter School 
shows bond issuance costs as a deduction from the carrying amount of bonds payable, net on the accompanying 
statement of financial position.   

Deferred lease incentive 
The Charter School leases its office equipment. The lease escalated the original lease payments and caused a 
buy-out from the prior lease. In accordance with GAAP, the Charter School recognizes the related buy-out 
credit on a straight-line basis and records the difference between the recognized lease credit and the amounts 
receivable under the lease as a deferred lease incentive. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, 
at which time it is recognized as revenue. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Deferred lease liability 
The Charter School leases certain facilities.  The leases contain pre-determined fixed escalation of the base rent.  
In accordance with GAAP, the Charter School recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over  
the lease term and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under 
the leases as a deferred lease liability. 

Investments - restricted 
Restricted investments consist of cash equivalents held for debt service and capitalized interest. 

Investment income includes interest, recorded on an accrual basis, dividends, net realized gains and losses, and 
net unrealized gains and losses, resulting from the change in prevailing market value of investments. Purchase 
and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis. 

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income.   

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2019 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of the 
Charter School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Contributed services 
The Charter School receives contributed services from volunteers to develop its academic program and to serve 
on the Board of Trustees. In addition, the Charter School received donated transportation services, metro cards, 
funding for free and reduced-cost breakfasts, lunches and snacks, special education services and physical, 
occupational, and speech therapy that was also provided for the students from the local district. The Charter 
School is not able to determine a value for these services. 

The Charter School received contributed legal services which were valued at $11,307 for the year ended 
June 30, 2018. These amounts are included in contributed services in the accompanying statement of activities 
and changes in net assets. There were no contributed legal services received for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

In-kind contributions 
Gifts and donations other than cash are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution.  

Marketing and recruiting costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing and recruiting costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and 
recruiting costs approximated $37,200 and  $22,500 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

- 13 -



 
  

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
   

      
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
   

 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
    

 
     

 
    

 
    

   
 

 
  

 
 

  

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2018 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by 
functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Change in accounting principle 
During August 2016 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”. The main provisions of ASU 2016-14 
require a Not-For-Profit (NFP) to: 

1) Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of 
the period, rather than three classes. That is, an NFP will report amounts for net assets with donor 
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions, as well as the currently required amount for total net 
assets.  

2) Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net 
assets (noted in item 1) rather than that of the required three classes as in prior years. An NFP would 
continue to report the currently required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3) Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows 
using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure of 
the indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method. 

4) Provide enhanced disclosures about:  

a) Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period and how the restrictions affect 
the use of resources. 

b) Qualitative information that communicates how a NFP manages its liquid resources available to meet 
cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. 

c) Quantitative information, and additional qualitative information, that communicates the availability of 
an NFP’s financial assets at the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. Availability of a financial asset 
may be affected by (1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and contracts 
with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by Board of Trustee decisions. 

d) Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional classification. That 
analysis of expenses is to be provided in one location. 

e) Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

ASU 2016-14 is effective for financial statements beginning after December 15, 2017 and was applied 
retrospectively except for disclosures regarding liquidity and availability of resources, which are presented only 
for the current year. There was no effect on total assets or changes in net assets. The Charter School has 
adopted the amendments effective July 1, 2018. 

New accounting pronouncements 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a new standard related to revenue 
recognition. Under the standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods 
or services in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for those 
goods or services. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. The Charter School is currently evaluating the provisions of this 
standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter School’s financial position or 
results of operations. 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and 
comparability among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities 
on the statement of financial position.  Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition 
of ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. 
GAAP. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. There has 
been an exposure draft proposed that would delay this ASU from the initial timetable and, if passed, will take 
effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and for interim periods with fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2021. The Charter School is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard to 
determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter School’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 22, 2019, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Note D. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE B: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The Charter School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments. The Charter School’s main source of liquidity is its cash accounts. 

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Charter 
School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of teaching, and public service as well as the 
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Charter 
School operates with a surplus budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general 
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies 
the sources and uses of the Charter School’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal 
year 2019. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30, 2019: 

Amount 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,314,675 
Grants and contracts receivable 943,191 
Due from related parties 298,803 

Total financial assets available to management 
for general expenditures within one year $ 13,556,669 

NOTE C: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Excellence Community Schools, Inc. (“Excellence”), a not-for-profit organization dedicated to helping start 
and run charter schools, provides management and other administrative support services to the Charter School.  
The Charter School entered into an educational services agreement with Excellence effective July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2021 whereby Excellence will provide the Charter School with services related to education 
and instruction, business operations, human resources and employment. In turn, Excellence shall be paid a fee 
equal to 13% of all public revenues received by the Charter School during the fiscal year. The Charter School 
incurred fees of approximately $2,897,000 and $2,244,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively.   

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $732,000 and $568,000, respectively, of fees were accrued in 
management fees due to charter management organization on the accompanying statement of financial position.  
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE C: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, Cont’d 

Approximately $293,000 and $125,000 is due to the Charter School from Excellence for expenses that are to be 
reimbursed by Excellence after June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Approximately $24,000 is due to 
Excellence from the Charter School for expenses that are to be reimbursed by Excellence subsequent to 
June 30, 2018. Approximately $93,000 of grant funding is due from Excellence to the Charter School at 
June 30, 2018. These amounts are included in due from related parties on the accompanying statement of 
financial position at June 30, 2019 and 2018. In addition, the Charter School formalized sub-lease agreements 
for two facilities with Excellence.  See Note D for more details. 

Stamford Charter School for Excellence (“Stamford”) is an educational corporation that operates as a charter 
school in Stamford, Connecticut. Approximately $14,000 is due to the Charter School from Stamford for 
expenses that are to be reimbursed by Stamford after June 30, 2019. Approximately $6,400 is due to Stamford 
from the Charter School for expenses that are to be reimbursed by the Charter School subsequent to June 30, 
2018. These amounts are included in due from related parties on the accompanying statement of financial 
position at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

NOTE D: SCHOOL FACILITIES 

The Charter School leases the facility for the Bronx Excellence 2 location. Effective July 1, 2016, the Charter 
School assigned the lease to Excellence. The sub-lease agreement between the Charter School and Excellence 
was finalized February 7, 2018 under the same terms of the original lease agreement. The lease term is through 
June 30, 2021. The Charter School’s base rent for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately $28,900 
per month.  The lease will have escalating payments throughout the term. 

In September 2017, the Charter School commenced the process to enter into a sub-lease agreement with 
Excellence for the facility for the Bronx Excellence 3 location. The sub-lease agreement was finalized as of 
February 7, 2018. The term of the lease began August 9, 2017 and goes through July 31, 2032. For the year 
ended June 30, 2019, Bronx Excellence 4 was co-located with Bronx Excellence 3 at this location. The Charter 
School’s base rent for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately $85,500 per month.  The lease will have 
escalating payments throughout the term. 

In July 2019, the Charter School entered into a sub-lease agreement with a single member LLC related to 
Excellence for the facility for the Bronx Excellence 5 location. The term of the lease begins July 1, 2019 and 
goes through June 30, 2029. The Charter School’s base rent for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 
approximately $83,700 per month.  The lease will have escalating payments throughout the term. 

Total rental expense was approximately $1,404,000 and $1,392,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 
2018, respectively.  
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE D: SCHOOL FACILITIES, Cont’d 

Future expected minimum payments of these leases are approximately as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 

$ 2,406,569 
2,500,383 
2,244,059 
2,343,514 
2,402,288 

17,193,575 

$ 29,090,388 

NOTE E: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

June 30, 
2019 2018 

Land $ 914,772 $ 914,772 
Buildings 33,258,453 33,318,151 
Furniture and fixtures 504,534 441,771 
Computers and equipment 1,191,325 951,409 
Software 12,661 12,661 
Leasehold improvements 1,081,991 1,011,606 
Construction in progress 30,105 30,105 

36,993,841 36,680,475 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 4,952,633 3,835,188 

$ 32,041,208 $ 32,845,287 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE E: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Cont’d 

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are 
completed and put into use. Total depreciation and amortization expense was $1,117,445 and $1,015,524 for 
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

NOTE F: OPERATING LEASES AND COMMITMENTS 

During January 2014, the Charter School canceled its lease of office equipment under a lease agreement that 
would have expired March 2016. The Charter School entered into a new lease for office equipment under a 
non-cancelable lease agreement at a monthly cost of $2,578 that expired in February 2019. Associated with 
this lease, the Charter School received a buy-out for the remaining payments for its prior lease totaling $20,800.  
The Charter School recorded the total buy-out amount as a deferred lease incentive and recognized 
approximately $350 per month for the duration of the lease as other income. The Charter School recognized 
approximately $2,430 and $4,160 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The Charter School leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements at a monthly cost of 
approximately $14,800 that will expire at various dates through December 2026. 

The future minimum payments on these agreements are approximately as follows:  

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 

$ 171,000 
170,000 
110,000 

82,000 
58,000 
39,000 

$ 630,000 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE G: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value. The framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820-10 are 
described below: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable 
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurements. 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value.  
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2019 or 2018 : 

Cash and cash equivalents, commercial paper, and money market funds: Fair value equals cost. 

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Charter School believes its valuation 
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or 
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value 
measurement at the reporting date. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE G: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, Cont’d 

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy; the Charter School’s restricted 
investment assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019 and 2018: 

Assets at Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

June 30, 2019: 

Money market $ 2,950,280 $ - $ - $ 2,950,280 

Commercial paper - 78,827  - 78,827 

Total assets at fair value $ 2,950,280 $ 78,827 $ - $ 3,029,107 

June 30, 2018: 

Money market $ 2,903,397 $ - $ - $ 2,903,397 

Commercial paper - 78,594  - 78,594 

Total assets at fair value $ 2,903,397 $ 78,594 $ - $ 2,981,991 

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Due to the risk 
associated with investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risk could materially 
affect the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE H: BONDS PAYABLE 

During April 2013, Build NYC Resource Corporation issued $23,310,000 in principal amount of Tax-Exempt 
Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (“Series A”) and $690,000 in principal amount of Taxable Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 
(“Series B”). Proceeds from the sale included a premium of $2,111,744, which is being amortized over the life of 
the bond issue. The proceeds of the bonds were made available to the Charter School pursuant to a special 
agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation. The remaining proceeds were used to construct additional 
schools and for renovation of the current school facilities. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE H: BONDS PAYABLE, Cont’d 

Revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2019 and 2018: 

Year 

Series A 

Principal 
Interest 

Rate 

Series B 

Principal 
Interest 

Rate Total 

Bond payable $ 22,930,000 3% - 5.5% $ - 5% $ 22,930,000 

Unamortized bond premium 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 

1,663,551 
(1,080,955)

-
-

1,663,551 
(1,080,955) 

Balance at
  June 30, 2018 $ 23,512,596 $ - $ 23,512,596 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

Bond payable 

$ 505,000 
525,000 
545,000 
570,000 
590,000 

19,710,000 

22,445,000 

3% 
4% 
4% 
4% 
4% 

4% - 5.5% 

$ - $ 505,000 
- 525,000 
- 545,000 
- 570,000 
- 590,000 
- 19,710,000 

- 22,445,000 

Unamortized bond premium 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 

1,570,032 
(994,074)

-
-

1,570,032 
(994,074) 

Balance at
  June 30, 2019 $ 23,020,958 $ - $ 23,020,958 

Principal payments for the Series A bonds are due annually, as indicated, on April 1. Payments of $485,000 
were made during the year ended June 30, 2019 toward the Series A bonds. Payments of $380,000 and $90,000 
were made during the year ended June 30, 2018 toward the Series A and Series B bonds, respectively. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE H: BONDS PAYABLE, Cont’d 

The Series A bonds are subject to optional redemption, in whole or in part, at the option of the Issuer at the 
request of the Charter School on April 1, 2023 or any business day thereafter. The bonds maturing in 2033 and 
2043 are subject to mandatory sinking fund installments beginning in 2024 and 2034, respectively. 

The Series B bonds had a stated rate and maturity of 5% in 2018. The bonds were subject to mandatory sinking 
fund installments beginning in 2016. 

The bonds are secured by the assets and certain revenue of the Charter School. Additionally, the Charter 
School Financing Partnership, an organization established to provide access to secondary market financing for 
charter schools that serve disadvantaged students and communities, has provided funds amounting to 
$1,540,000 to be held by the trustee in a Debt Reserve account as additional security. This amount is included 
in restricted investments in the statement of financial position. The Charter School is obligated to pay an 
annual fee equal to 0.14% of the bonds outstanding principal amount as of March 31st each year, for the use of 
these funds as security. The funds are to be repaid to the Charter School Financing Partnership upon expiration 
of the bonds. 

In accordance with the loan agreement, the proceeds from the sale of the revenue bonds were placed in a 
Project Fund, maintained by U.S. Bank. The trustee is to use the monies in this fund to make payments to or 
on behalf of the Charter School to pay for the costs of the project upon receipt of written requisitions. Any 
monies remaining in the Project Fund will be transferred to the Redemption Account of the Bond Fund, to be 
applied by the trustees towards the redemption of the bonds. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the unexpended 
balance was $78,827 and $78,594, which is included in restricted investments. 

The Charter School is subject to certain loan covenants which require the Charter School to maintain specified 
cash on hand, debt service coverage ratio and limitations on further indebtedness. The Charter School is in 
compliance with all loan covenants as of June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Total issuance costs of approximately $1,621,000 are being amortized over the life of the bonds. Amortization 
expense of $86,881 and $100,564 was recorded and is recognized in interest expense for the years ended 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Charter School incurred net interest expense of $1,085,856 and 
$1,102,882 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively which is recognized in the statement of 
activities and changes in net assets. 

NOTE I: RETIREMENT PLAN

The Charter School sponsors a defined contribution 403(b) plan covering all eligible employees. The Charter 
School matches up to 5% of each employee’s annual compensation not to exceed the employee’s salary deferral 
amount. The Charter School may also elect to make additional contributions to the plan on a discretionary 
basis. The Charter School made contributions of approximately $130,300 and $56,500 for the years ended 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE J: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 

NOTE K: CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2019, approximately 98% of grants and contracts receivable are due from the Federal government, 
relating to certain grants. For the year ended June 30, 2019, 86% of total operating revenue and support came 
from per-pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually by the State based on 
the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located. 

At June 30, 2018, approximately 29% of grants and contracts receivables are due from New York State relating 
to certain grants. For the year ended June 30, 2018, 84% of total operating revenue and support came from per-
pupil funding provided by New York State. The per-pupil rate is set annually by the State based on the school 
district in which the Charter School’s students are located 

NOTE L: NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions are as follows: 

June 30, 
2019 2018 

Undesignated 
Invested in property and equipment, net of related de

$ 13,394,592 
bt 7,480,250 

$ 20,874,842 

$ 

$ 16,242,806 

8,450,115 
7,792,691 

NOTE M: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
All expenses that are allocated to more than one program or supporting function are allocated on the basis of 
estimates of time and effort.  
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

    
            

  
  

    
   

  
  

 

  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Board of Trustees 
Bronx Charter School for Excellence 

We have audited the financial statements of Bronx Charter School for Excellence as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2019, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2019, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The financial information hereinafter is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, as a whole. 

Rochester, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES BY CHARTER 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Bronx 
Excellence 1 

Bronx 
Excellence 2 

 Bronx 
Excellence 3 

Bronx 
Excellence 4 Total 

Revenue, gains and other support:

 Public school district
    Resident student enrollment 
    Students with disabilities 

Grants and contracts:

 State and local     Federal - Title and IDEA 
    Federal - other 
  Food service / Child nutrition program 
  NYC DOE Rental Assistance 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

$ 12,711,909 
755,077 

61,814 
640,670 
89,435 

467,487 
-

14,726,392 

$ 3,746,771 
187,269 

18,266 
286,227 

21,672 
-

346,800 

4,607,005 

$ 3,689,781 
96,980 

18,302 
146,248 
126,767 

-
665,810 

4,743,888 

$ 1,661,533 
75,130 

158,718 
56,574 

110,176 
-

332,907 

2,395,038 

$ 21,809,994 
1,114,456

257,100
1,129,719

348,050
467,487

1,345,517 

26,472,323 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 

Special education 

  Management and general 
  Fundraising and special events 

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

10,621,429 
1,663,778 

12,285,207 
819,034 

10,067 

13,114,308 

2,568,815 
395,626 

2,964,441 
323,407 

7,291 

3,295,139 

2,952,858 
460,509 

3,413,367 
347,036 

5,508 

3,765,911 

1,368,467 
208,581 

1,577,048 
125,944 

2,254 

1,705,246 

17,511,569
2,728,494 

20,240,063
1,615,421

25,120 

21,880,604 

SURPLUS FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,612,084 1,311,866 977,977 689,792 4,591,719 

Support and other revenue:
  Investment income 
  Miscellaneous income 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

37,962 
2,340

40,302

-
 15

 15

-

-

-

-

-

-

37,962
 2,355  

40,317 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,652,386 1,311,881 977,977 689,792 4,632,036 

Net assets at beginning of year 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 

13,858,893 

15,511,279 $ 

2,181,882 

3,493,763 $ 

202,031

1,180,008 $ 

-

689,792 $ 

16,242,806 

20,874,842 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – BRONX EXCELLENCE 1 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs:
     Administrative staff personnel
     Instructional personnel
     Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

9 
35 2 

46 

Program Services 

Regular Special 
Education Education 

$ 342,454 $ 54,401 
2,823,616 433,187 
1,142,979 234,605 

4,309,049 722,193 

$ 

Sub-total 

396,855 
3,256,803 
1,377,584 

5,031,242 

Management 
and 

general 

$ 142,129 
-

88,042

230,171 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising and 
special events 

$ 5,032 
-

-

5,032 

$ 

Sub-total 

147,161 
-

88,042 

235,203 

$ 

Total 

544,016 
3,256,803
1,465,626 

5,266,445 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Professional development 
Legal fees 
Audit/accounting fees 
Professional services 
Student and staff recruitment 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office expenses 
Food service 
Student services 
Insurance 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities 
Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest expense 
Management fees 
Other 

934,097 
38,920 

-
-

805,772 
16,938 

289,831 
139,628 
393,219 
119,796 

-
521 

149,695 
79,083 

180,254 
879,987 
888,457 

1,392,943 
3,239

$ 10,621,429 

156,554 
6,524 

-
-

122,537 
2,839 

16,016 
23,402 
46,828 
14,213 

-
88 

25,088 
4,382 

30,211 
109,998 
148,905 
233,457 

 543

$ 1,663,778 $ 

1,090,651 
45,444 

-
-

928,309 
19,777 

305,847 
163,030 
440,047 
134,009 

-
609 

174,783 
83,465 

210,465 
989,985 

1,037,362 
1,626,400 

 3,782  

12,285,207 

49,896 
2,079 
4,432 

18,230 
38,494 

905 
-

7,459 
-
-

87,825 
28 

7,996 
1,043 
9,629 

109,998 
134,338 
74,406 
42,105

$ 819,034 

1,090 
45 

-
-

640 
20 

-
164 

-
-
-
-

175 
23 

210 
-

1,037 
1,627 

4 

$ 10,067 $ 

50,986 
2,124 
4,432 

18,230 
39,134 

925 
-

7,623 

-
87,825 

28 
8,171 
1,066 
9,839 

109,998 
135,375 

76,033 
42,109 

829,101 $ 

1,141,637 
47,568 

4,432 
18,230 

967,443 
20,702 

305,847 
170,653 
440,047 
134,009 

87,825 
637 

182,954 
84,531 

220,304 
1,099,983 
1,172,737 
1,702,433 

45,891 

13,114,308 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – BRONX EXCELLENCE 2 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs:
     Administrative staff personnel
     Instructional personnel
     Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

2 
8 1 

11 

Regular 
Education 

$ 245,165 
638,590 
216,976 

1,100,731 

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

$ 39,311 
70,954 
60,905 

171,170 

$ 

Sub-total 

284,476 
709,544 
277,881 

1,271,901 

Management 
and 

general 

$ 105,161 
-

30,106

135,267 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising and 
special events 

$ 3,472 
-

-

3,472 

$ 

Sub-total 

108,633 
-

30,106 

138,739 

$ 

Total 

393,109 
709,544
307,987 

1,410,640 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Professional development 
Legal fees 
Audit/accounting fees 
Professional services 
Student and staff recruitment 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office expenses 
Student services 
Insurance 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities 
Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Management fees 
Other 

299,191 
17 

-
-

278,907 
3,636 

109,090 
30,571 
16,336 

-
244,914 

45,615 
2,360 

42,070 
7,305 

388,072 
-

$ 2,568,815 

46,526 
3 
-
-

41,578 
565 

15,387 
4,754 
2,304 

-
38,085 

7,093 
358 

6,542 
913 

60,348 

-

$ 395,626 $ 

345,717 
20 

-
-

320,485 
4,201 

124,477 
35,325 
18,640 

-
282,999 
52,708 
2,718 

48,612 
8,218 

448,420 

-

2,964,441 

36,767 
2 

122 
5,398 

23,821 
447 

-
3,757 

-
27,717 
30,097 

5,606 
218 

5,170 
913 

47,689 
416

$ 323,407 

944 
-
-
-

488 
11 

-
96 

-
-

773 
144 

6 
133 

-
1,224 

-

$ 7,291 $ 

37,711 
2 

122 
5,398 

24,309 
458 

-
3,853 

-
27,717 
30,870 
5,750 

224 
5,303 

913 
48,913 

416 

330,698 $ 

383,428 
22 

122 
5,398 

344,794 
4,659 

124,477 
39,178 
18,640 
27,717 

313,869 
58,458 

2,942 
53,915 

9,131 
497,333 

416 

3,295,139 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – BRONX EXCELLENCE 3 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs:
     Administrative staff personnel
     Instructional personnel
     Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

2 
14 2 

18 

Regular 
Education 

$ 155,560 
633,902 
297,086 

1,086,548 

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

$ 24,866 
70,434 
77,346 

172,646 

$ 

Sub-total 

180,426 
704,336 
374,432 

1,259,194 

Management 
and 

general 

$ 65,999 
-

36,276

102,275 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising and 
special events 

$ 2,231 
-

-

2,231 

$ 

Sub-total 

68,230 
-

36,276 

104,506 

$ 

Total 

248,656 
704,336
410,708 

1,363,700 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Professional development 
Legal fees 
Audit/accounting fees 
Professional services 
Student and staff recruitment 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office expenses 
Student services 
Insurance 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities 
Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Management fees 
Other 

331,732 
(105) 

-
-

268,173 
8,320 

89,617 
28,705 

3,927 
-

659,795 
46,576 

2,620 
41,338 

4,166 
381,050 

396

$ 2,952,858 

57,326 
(17) 

-
-

34,516 
939 

9,563 
4,561 

981 
-

104,837 
7,401 

58 
6,568 

521 
60,546 

 63

$ 460,509 $ 

389,058 
(122) 

-
-

302,689 
9,259 

99,180 
33,266 
4,908 

-
764,632 
53,977 
2,678 

47,906 
4,687 

441,596 
 459

3,413,367 

32,999 
(10) 

9,850 
5,398 

58,377 
92 

-
2,702 

-
27,717 
62,105 

4,384 
831 

3,891 
521 

35,867 
 37

$ 347,036 

606 
-
-
-

232 
2 
-

59 
-
-

1,355 
96 
59 
85 

-
782 

1

$ 5,508 $ 

33,605 
(10) 

9,850 
5,398 

58,609 
94 

-
2,761 

-
27,717 
63,460 
4,480 

890 
3,976 

521 
36,649 

 38  

352,544 $ 

422,663 
(132) 

9,850 
5,398 

361,298 
9,353 

99,180 
36,027 

4,908 
27,717 

828,092 
58,457 

3,568 
51,882 

5,208 
478,245 

497 

3,765,911 
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BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BY CHARTER – BRONX EXCELLENCE 4 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs:
     Administrative staff personnel
     Instructional personnel
     Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

1 
6 

3 

10 

Regular 
Education 

$ 69,798 
344,575 
105,000 

519,373 

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

$ 11,189 
38,286 
30,000 

79,475 

$ 

Sub-total 

80,987 
382,861 
135,000 

598,848 

Management 
and 

general 

$ 29,916 
-

15,000

44,916 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising and 
special events 

$ 989 
-

-

989 

$ 

Sub-total 

30,905 
-

15,000 

45,905 

$

Total 

111,892 
382,861
150,000 

644,753 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Professional development 
Legal fees 
Audit/accounting fees 
Professional services 
Student and staff recruitment 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office expenses 
Student services 
Insurance 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Utilities 
Non-capitalized equipment and furnishings 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Management fees 
Other 

181,193 
(12) 

-
-

85,451 
2,024 

121,450 
12,759 

2,483 
-

210,914 
20,724 
22,768 
10,050 

2,499 
176,791 

-

$ 1,368,467 

35,622 
(2) 

-
-

11,817 
283 

12,445 
1,952 

644 
-

32,274 
3,171 
1,997 
1,538 

312 
27,053 

-

$ 208,581 $ 

216,815 
(14) 

-
-

97,268 
2,307 

133,895 
14,711 

3,127 
-

243,188 
23,895 
24,765 
11,588 

2,811 
203,844 

-

1,577,048 

19,024 
(1) 

1,983 
2,504 
5,236 

130 
-

1,103 
-

12,957 
18,240 

1,792 
1,312 

869 
312 

15,289 
278

$ 125,944 

232 
-
-
-

115 
3 
-

24 
-
-

402 
39 
94 
19 

-
337 

-

$ 2,254 $ 

19,256 
(1) 

1,983 
2,504 
5,351 

133 
-

1,127 
-

12,957 
18,642 
1,831 
1,406 

888 
312 

15,626 
278 

128,198 $ 

236,071 
(15) 

1,983 
2,504 

102,619 
2,440 

133,895 
15,838 

3,127 
12,957 

261,830 
25,726 
26,171 
12,476 

3,123 
219,470 

278 

1,705,246 

- 31 -



  
  

       

 
 

    
  

    
   
   

        
    
   
   

      

 
  

      

         

  

    

 

   

   

      
 

 
                  

   

  
   

       
 

  

   

            
     

                
  

            
              

                   
           

     

    
      

  
      

Transm ttal Form 
Annual F nanc al Statement Aud t Report 

for SU Y Authorized Charter Schools 

Charter School Name: Bronx  harter School for Excellence 3 

Aud t Per od: 2018-19 
Pr or Per od: 2017-18 

Report Due Date: Friday, November 01, 2019 
Date Subm tted: Select from drop-down list → 

School F scal Contact Name: Vikas Kaushal 
School F scal Contact Ema l: 
School F scal Contact Phone: 

School Aud t F rm Name: Mengel Metzger Barr &  o. LLP 
School Aud t Contact Name: Michelle  ain 
School Aud t Contact Ema l: 
School Aud t Contact Phone: 

SUNY CHARTER SCHOOLS INSTITUTE - Report ng Requ rements: 

Online Portal: 
Requ red 8 Items: 
1) The independent auditor’s report on fnancial statements and notes; 
2) 

3) Reports on internal controls over fnancial reporting and on compliance. 

And,  f appl cable: 

4)Management Letter A written management letter was not issued 

5)Management Letter Response N/A 

6) Extension to be fled 

7) 
Included 

8)  orrective Action Plan None required 

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT - Report ng Requ rements: 
Online Portal: 

Requ red Items: 
1) This transmital form (a copy of the Excel fle containing the four schedules Does NOT need to be included
2) Audited Financial Report; 

And,  f appl cable: 
3)Management Letter and Response; 
4) 

Please subm t the Annual F nanc al Statement and other assoc ated documents 
to BOTH 

SUNY Charter Schools Inst tute 
AND 

New York State Educat on Department 

https:// y.epicenternow.org/ho e.aspx 

Excel template fle with appropriate sheets completed: Financial Position, Statement of Activities,  ash 
Flow and Functional Expenses worksheets; and 

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 
items are not included. 
Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend federal 
funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be 
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc  

If not included, state the reason(s) below. Or, if not applicable fll 
in"N/A")  

Form 990; or Extension Form 
8868 
Federal Single Audit/ Uniform 
Guidance in 2  FR Part 200, 
Subpart F 

https://nysed-cso-reports. yreviewroo .co / 

Federal Single Audit/ 
Uniform Guidance in 2  FR Part 200, Subpart F. 



  

 

    
   
   

 

   
 

 

 

 

   
 
 

    
      

  
 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
 

 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 
Statement of F nanc al Pos t on 

as of June 30, 2019 DO NOT  NT R BALANC  SH  T DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Balance sheet data should for the  d Corp:

Bronx Charter School for  xcellence (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Bronx Charter School for  xcellence. 

ASSETS 2018-19 

CURRENT ASSETS 
 ash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid expenses

 ontributions and other receivables
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefts
Deferred Revenue
 urrent maturities of long-term debt
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable

Other

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturitiesTOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

 $ -

-

$ -



 

 

                                  

 

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS -

 K - Should be zero -



 

 

   
  
  

  

  

   
     

 

      

 

 

  

  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR E 
Statement of F nanc al Po 

as of June 30, 2019 DO NOT  NT R BALANC  SH  T DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Balance sheet data should for the  d Corp:

Bronx Charter School for  xcellence (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Bronx Charter School for  xcellence. 

ASSETS 2017-18

CURRENT ASSETS 
 ash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

 ontributions and other receivables 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefts 
Deferred Revenue 
 urrent maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

$ -

-

$ -



   

   

 

 

                                  

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS

 

-

 K - Should be zero -



 

  

    

   

 
    
                                                                    
                                                                                           

    
                                                                                        
                                                                                       
                                                                                      
                                                                                                                     

                                                                                    

                                                                                                                        

                                                                 

   
                                                                   
                                                                                    
                                                                                                                      

                                                                    
                                                                                     

                                                                                                      
                                                                

                                                                         

 
  
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                          

                                                                                             
                                                                                                    

                                                                         

                                                                                        

                                                                                                                       

                                                            

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 

Statement of Act v t es 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18
Temporar ly 

 Unrestr cted Restr cted  Total  Total

 REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 
Resident Student Enrollment $ 3,689,781 $ - $ 3,689,781 $ 2,207,441 
Students with disabilities 96,980 - 96,980 32,504 

Grants and  ontracts 
State and local 18,302 - 18,302 250,688 
Federal - Title and IDEA 146,248 - 146,248 90,205 
Federal - Other 126,767 - 126,767 92,580 
Other - - - -

NY  DoE Rental Assistance 665,810 - 665,810 642,957 

Food Service/ hild Nutrition Program - - - -

 TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 4,743,888 - 4,743,888 3,316,375

 EXPENSES 
Program Services 
Regular Education $ 2,952,858 $ - $ 2,952,858 $ 2,588,295 
Special Education 460,509 - 460,509 363,452 
Other Programs - - - -

Total Program Services 3,413,367 - 3,413,367 2,951,747 
Management and general 347,036 - 347,036 165,767 

Fundraising 5,508 - 5,508 -
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,765,911 - 3,765,911 3,117,514 

RPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 977,977 - 977,977 198,861

 SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
 ontributions 
Foundations $ - $ 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

-

- $ - $ -
Individuals 
 orporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income - 4,356 

Net assets released from restriction 
 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE - - - 4,356

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 977,977 - 977,977 203,217 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 202,031 - 202,031 (1,186) 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

 NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 1,180,008 $ - $ 1,180,008 $ 202,031 



                                                                                  
                                                                                      
                                                                                   

                                                                                     
                                                                                  

                                                                                   
                                                                                    
                                                                                   
                                                                                   
                                                                                   
                                                                                   
                                                                                   

                                                                                     
                                                                                   

                                                                                   
                                                                                   

                                                                                  
                                                                                  
                                                                              

                                                                                    
                                                                                  
                                                                              

                                                                                      
                                                                                  
                                                                              

                                                                              
                                                                                      

                                                                              

  

 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ - $ -
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation - -
Grants Receivable - -
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses - -
Accounts Payable - -
Accrued Expenses - -
Accrued Liabilities - -
 ontributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue - -
Interest payments - -
Other - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ - $ -
 ash at beginning of year - -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ - $ -

DO NOT  NT R CASH FLOW DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Cash flow data should for the  d Corp:

Bronx Charter School for  xcellence (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Bronx Charter School for  xcellence. 



 

  
           

                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                             

      
  

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3 
Statement of Funct onal Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 
Program Services Supporting Services 

No. of Regular Special Other Management
Positions Education Education Education Total Fund-raising and General Total Total 

Personnel Services  osts $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 2.00 155,560 24,866 - 180,426 2,231 65,999 68,230 248,656 120,289 
Instructional Personnel 14.00 633,902 70,434 - 704,336 - - - 704,336 564,489 
Non-Instructional Personnel 2.00 297,086 77,346 - 374,432 - 36,276 36,276 410,708 177,015 
Total Salaries and Staf 18.00 1,086,548 172,646 - 1,259,194 2,231 102,275 104,506 1,363,700 861,793 

Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 331,732 57,326 - 389,058 606 32,999 33,605 422,663 170,511 
Retirement - - - - - - - - -
Management  ompany Fees 381,050 60,546 - 441,596 782 35,867 36,649 478,245 284,386 
Legal Service - - - - - 9,850 9,850 9,850 2,927 
Accounting / Audit Services - - - - - 5,398 5,398 5,398 -
Other Purchased / Professional /  onsulting Servic 268,173 34,516 - 302,689 232 58,377 58,609 361,298 349,599 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance In 659,795 104,837 - 764,632 1,355 62,105 63,460 828,092 1,078,261 
Repairs & Maintenance 41,338 6,568 - 47,906 85 3,891 3,976 51,882 83,949 
Insurance - - - - - 27,717 27,717 27,717 11,425 
Utilities 46,576 7,401 - 53,977 96 4,384 4,480 58,457 43,632 
Supplies / Materials 89,617 9,563 - 99,180 - - - 99,180 110,072 
Equipment / Furnishings 2,620 58 - 2,678 59 831 890 3,568 70,423 
Staf Development (105) (17) - (122) - (10) (10) (132) 322 
Marketing / Recruitment 8,320 939 - 9,259 2 92 94 9,353 1,275 
Technology - - - - - - - - -
Food Service - - - - - - - - 261 
Student Services 3,927 981 - 4,908 - - - 4,908 1,822 
Ofce Expense 28,705 4,561 - 33,266 59 2,702 2,761 36,027 39,991 
Depreciation 4,166 521 - 4,687 - 521 521 5,208 1,336 

OTHER 396 63 - 459 1 37 38 497 5,529 
Total Expenses $ 2,952,858 $ 460,509 $ - $ 3,413,367 $ 5,508 $ 347,036 $ 352,544 $ 3,765,911 $ 3,117,514 



























	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Kathy
Lathen 

Mardi 
Schecter 

Joyce
Frost 

Joe Lewis 

Stacey
Lauren 

Kenneth 
Adams 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Secretary 

Vice 
Chair 

Treasurer 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Finance, 
Executive 
, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Executive 
, Finance, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Finance, 
Executive 
, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Executive 
, Finance, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Executive 
, 
Educatio 
n, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Executive 
, 
Educatio 
n, 
Disciplina 
ry 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
17 

05/01/20
18 

07/01/20
19 

05/07/20
19 

12/01/20
18 

05/07/20
19 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

06/30/20
20 

04/30/20
21 

06/30/20
22 

05/06/20
19 

11/30/20
21 

05/06/20
22 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

5 or less 

5 or less 

5 or less 

5 or less 

5 or less 

5 or less 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

6 

3 

1 

6 

5 

5 

3 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

BRONX CHARTER SCHOOL FOR EXCELLENCE 3Section Heading 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

During our student recruitment process, we
widely advertise our admissions window in
Bronx newspapers that reaches out to
various areas where economically
disadvantaged families reside. For our onlineEconom application, we indicate it as a preference toically encourage families to apply. We informDisadva families we are a public school and thatntaged there is no cost associated with attending.
For families who are severe need and cannot 
afford the entire uniform, we provide as
much assistance as we can so they get what
they need. 

As part of our student recruitment process
English every year, we advertise in various local
Langua papers. During this time, bilingual staff
ge members from BCSE visit various early
Learner childhood education centers to distribute 
s/Multili applications and share knowledge about
ngual what the school has to offer for students who 
Learner are English Language Learners (ELL).
s Currently, our applications are translated in

Spanish and Bengali. 

During our student recruitment process,
Student prospective families who indicate they have
s with a child with a disability are informed that we
Disabilit have a dedicated student support service
ies department that will help them one on one

once they are accepted. 

We will continue to advertise with papers
that we know are delivered to areas of ED 
families. We also advertise in free 
newspapers so that we reach families who
are unable to afford to purchase other
publications. We will continue to provide
assistance for uniforms for those families 
who are in severe need. We also plan to
request an amendment to make this an
official preference for the school, falling after
the sibling preference. 

We will continue our efforts by continuing to
advertise and visit early childhood education
centers. We will also attend Charter School 
open houses that are offered by the NYC
Charter School Center. We hope to one day
be able to set up an Charter School open
house solely in the Bronx to reach out to
more families. 

We will continue to extend our time and 
knowledge on a case by case basis for those
families who have a child with a disability. It
is very important for us to keep this culture
as it shows how hard we are willing to work
with a parent in making their child succeed
no matter what setting is required. 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

Once we have established who falls into the 
criteria, we are able to connect with camps

Econom and programs that specifically target this
ically population. We then work with the families
Disadva who are interested in these programs and go
ntaged through the steps of putting the student in

the program. Programs have been offered
during the school year and in the summer. 

At the time of registration, families are given
English a survey that helps to identify what the
Langua primary language in the household is. We
ge find that 10% 15% of kindergarten students
Learner are eligible for NYSITELL testing. This test
s/Multili helps us identify the level of English
ngual proficiency in the student. Through
Learner immersion and high quality assistance from
s the teachers, students are tested out by the

time they first or second grade. 

BCSE mainstreams students with special
needs. Additionally, BCSE serves students
who have special learning needs and
provides services including: Integrated Co
Teaching (ICT), Special Education Teacher

Student Support Services (SETSS), Counseling,
s with Speech, Occupational Therapy and Physical
Disabilit Therapy. We also have staffed positions
ies whose focus is solely on student with

disabilities. They work hard to get students
the services they need so that eventually the
student can be phased out of the
Individualized Educational Plan they were
given. 

We will continue to research what programs
are offered to this specific population and
provide them with as many opportunities as
we can for their children. We are working on
obtaining uniform vouchers for those families
who absolutely cannot afford uniforms for
their children. New for this year, we have
been accepted into the “Cool Culture”
programs which will allow all kindergarten
families to attend the 90 cultural and art 
institutions. 

The process for identifying ELL students will
remain the same as it has worked over the 
years. One new addition we will work to
implement this year is purchasing literature
or software. An additional supplement they
can do at home with their families so that 
they all are getting the benefit of learning. 

We will continue to work with families on a 
case by case basis to educate them on what
the child’s IEP means and why they should
receive the recommended service. We will 
begin servicing the child as soon as possible.
If for any reason, a parent doesn’t agree with
the mandated services, we will help them
with the appeal process as well. The ultimate
goal is get the correct services for the
student so that they can eventually go from
what may be a complex setting to a less
complex setting then eventually phasing out. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

9 4 4 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

1 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

0 9 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18

6/30/19 
6/30/19 

2 3 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

Our schools provide the opportunity for new staff to join the team later in the year. When available they 

serve as a Co Teacher supporting the existing lead teacher; this can account for mid year increases. We 

support the transfer of staff within the network to: accommodate staff commutes, host veteran staff at 

new locations or for a promotion at a new location. 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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